



## PERMANENT ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER

### BP 40-2021

CHAPTER 855  
BOARD OF PHARMACY

**FILED**

12/16/2021 3:48 PM  
ARCHIVES DIVISION  
SECRETARY OF STATE  
& LEGISLATIVE COUNSEL

FILING CAPTION: 2021 HB 3036 allows physician assistant to dispense prescription drugs and proactive procedural rule review

EFFECTIVE DATE: 01/01/2022

AGENCY APPROVED DATE: 12/09/2021

CONTACT: Rachel Melvin  
971-673-0001  
pharmacy.rulemaking@bop.oregon.gov

800 NE Oregon St., Suite 150  
Portland, OR 97232

Filed By:  
Rachel Melvin  
Rules Coordinator

#### RULES:

855-043-0002, 855-043-0003, 855-043-0004, 855-043-0005, 855-043-0210, 855-043-0505, 855-043-0510, 855-043-0530, 855-043-0540, 855-043-0545, 855-043-0555, 855-043-0560, 855-043-0705, 855-043-0740

AMEND: 855-043-0002

NOTICE FILED DATE: 10/25/2021

RULE SUMMARY: Revisions to Division 043 are necessary to incorporate changes to PA scope set forth in 2021 HB 3036, related to dispensing prescription drugs. Repeal of OAR 855-043-0405 through 855-043-0455 and 855-043-0002(7) effective 3/31/2022. Appropriately references and reflects current regulations, amends and repeals outdated regulations in alignment with the board's 2020-2024 strategic plan.

#### CHANGES TO RULE:

855-043-0002  
Definitions ¶¶

In this division of rules:¶¶

(1) "Administer" means the direct application of a drug or device whether by injection, inhalation, ingestion, or any other means, to the body of a patient by:¶¶

(a) A practitioner or the practitioner's authorized agent; or¶¶

(b) The patient at the direction of the practitioner.¶¶

(2) "Counseling" means an oral or other appropriate communication process between a practitioner and a patient or a patient's agent in which the practitioner obtains information from the patient or patient's agent, and, where appropriate, the patient's medical records, assesses that information and provides the patient or patient's agent with professional advice regarding the safe and effective use of the drug or device for the purpose of assuring therapeutic appropriateness.¶¶

(3) "Dispense" or "Dispensing" means the preparation and delivery of a prescription drug pursuant to a lawful order of a practitioner in a suitable container appropriately labeled for subsequent administration to or use by a patient or other individual entitled to receive the prescription drug.¶¶

(34) "Expedited Partner Therapy (EPT)" means the practice of prescribing or dispensing an antibiotic drug for the treatment of a sexually transmitted disease to the partner of a patient without first examining that partner.¶¶

(5) "Formulary" means a list of drugs or classes of drugs, or a list of disease states, health conditions or preventative measures such as immunization or birth control approved by the ~~B~~board or by the ~~D~~epartment of ~~H~~uman ~~S~~ervices (~~D~~HS Oregon Health Authority (OHA)).¶

(46) "Health Officer" means a physician licensed by the Oregon Medical Board or the Oregon Board of Naturopathic Medicine and employed by or under contract with a county or district health department or ~~D~~HS OHA.¶

(57) "Supervising Physician Dispensing Outlet" (SPDO) means any clinic, office, health care center, treatment center, or other establishment from which a physician assistant dispenses drugs, but that is not otherwise registered with the Board in the category of Retail Drug Outlet.

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 689.205

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 689.155

AMEND: 855-043-0003

NOTICE FILED DATE: 10/25/2021

RULE SUMMARY: Appropriately references and reflects current regulations, amends and repeals outdated regulations in alignment with the board's 2020-2024 strategic plan.

CHANGES TO RULE:

855-043-0003

Expedited Partner Therapy ¶

~~(1) Expedited Partner Therapy (EPT) means the practice of prescribing or dispensing an antibiotic drug for the treatment of a sexually transmitted disease to~~ There is substantial evidence that rates of re-infection with certain sexually transmitted diseases can be reduced by treating all sexual partners for the disease, even when the treating clinician has not examined those partners. This practice is known as Expedited Partner Therapy.¶

~~(2) Because of the important public health implications, the 2009 Oregon Legislature passed HB 3022 authorizing the partner of a patient without first examining that partner's practice. This law permits health professional regulatory boards to adopt rules permitting practitioners to practice Expedited Partner Therapy.¶~~

~~(23) An EPT prescription may only be dispensed for a drug and a disease that has been determined by DHS to be appropriately addressed by EPT~~ The law specifies that a prescription issued in the practice of Expedited Partner Therapy is valid, even if the name of the patient the prescription is intended for is not on the prescription.

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 689.205

Statutes/Other Implemented: ~~2009 OL Ch 522~~ ORS 689.505

RULE SUMMARY: Appropriately references and reflects current regulations, amends and repeals outdated regulations in alignment with the board's 2020-2024 strategic plan.

CHANGES TO RULE:

855-043-0004

Expedited Partner Therapy (EPT) - Procedures

(1) Notwithstanding any other rules in this division that mandate requirements for a valid prescription and for labeling, when a prescription is marked EPT or a similar notation by the prescribing practitioner, this rule governs.

(2) An EPT prescription may only be dispensed for a drug that has been determined by the Oregon Health Authority to be appropriately used for EPT.

Prescription

(3) An EPT treatment protocol must conform to the following:

(a) It must include a prescription for each named or unnamed partner of the patient;

(b) It must contain a hand written or electronic signature of the prescribing practitioner;

(c) The practitioner must identify the prescription in the following manner:

(A) Write "for EPT," or a similar notation, on the face of the prescription;

(B) For a verbal order, the practitioner must identify the prescription as an "EPT Prescription," or similar identification;

(C) The practitioner must identify the prescription for each partner either by including the name of the patient, such as "John Doe - Partner 1" or by labeling the prescription as "EPT Partner";

(d) An EPT Prescription expires 30 days after the date written;

(e) An EPT Prescription may not be refilled;

(f) If any component of the prescription is missing, the DPDO must contact the prescriber or the prescriber's agent and must record the additional information on the prescription.

(4) A patient may give the prescription to each unnamed partner for that person to fill at a pharmacy of their choice; or the patient may elect for a DPDO to dispense all prescriptions and then give the dispensed drugs to each unnamed partner.

Labeling

(5) The DPDO must label the drug for the named patient in accordance with normal procedures as specified in the other rules of this division, however when either the patient or partner is unnamed, the DPDO may create a unique identifier and use that instead of a name for both labeling and record keeping purposes.

(6) The DPDO must assign a separate and unique identifier to each prescription and clearly identify this number on each corresponding prescription label.

Counseling

(7) The DPDO is not required to obtain an EPT patient's or partner's name, address, or demographics; however, the DPDO must:

(a) Provide counseling in the form of written patient information to accompany each prescription for each partner and ask the patient about any known allergies or other drugs being taken by each partner. The DPDO should advise the patient to encourage each partner to call the DPDO before taking the drug if they have experienced any adverse effect from a drug in the past or if they are taking other drugs;

(b) Document counseling.

Records

(8) All documentation required by this rule must be attached to the prescription and must be referenced to each partner's prescription. Such documentation must be retained in accordance with the other rules in this division and must be made available to the board upon request.

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 689.205

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 689.505

REPEAL: 855-043-0005

NOTICE FILED DATE: 10/25/2021

RULE SUMMARY: Appropriately references and reflects current regulations, amends and repeals outdated regulations in alignment with the board's 2020-2024 strategic plan.

CHANGES TO RULE:

~~855-043-0005~~

~~Practitioner Labeling~~

~~All drugs dispensed by a practitioner must be labeled with the following information:~~

~~(1) Name, address and telephone number of the practitioner;~~

~~(2) Date;~~

~~(3) Name of the patient or the owner of the animal for which the drug is dispensed. If the prescription is for an animal, the species of the animal for which the drug is dispensed;~~

~~(4) Name of drug, strength, the quantity dispensed. When a generic name is used, the label must also contain the name of the manufacturer or distributor;~~

~~(5) Directions for use;~~

~~(6) Required precautionary information regarding controlled substances;~~

~~(7) Such other cautionary information as required for patient safety; and~~

~~(8) An expiration date after which the patient should not use the drug or medicine. The expiration date on a drug dispensed must be the same as that on the original container unless, in the practitioner's professional judgment, a shorter expiration date is warranted. A drug must not be dispensed after the expiration date of the drug.~~

~~(9) Notwithstanding the labeling requirements in this rule, when a drug is dispensed in the practice of an Expedited Partner Therapy treatment protocol, the name of the patient or the patient's partner may be omitted from the label.~~

~~Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 689.205~~

~~Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 689.155, ORS 689.505~~

REPEAL: 855-043-0210

NOTICE FILED DATE: 10/25/2021

RULE SUMMARY: Ensure rules reflect updates to statutes, including ORS 678.390 concerning the authority of a nurse practitioner and clinical nurse specialist to dispense drugs.

CHANGES TO RULE:

~~855-043-0210~~

~~Purpose and Scope~~

~~The Oregon State Board of Nursing may grant to a certified nurse practitioner or Clinical Nurse Specialist the privilege of writing prescriptions described in the formulary under ORS 678.385. A certified nurse practitioner or Clinical Nurse Specialist may submit an application to the Oregon State Board of Nursing to dispense prescription drugs. An application for the authority to dispense prescription drugs as authorized by ORS 678.385 shall include evidence of completion of a prescription drug dispensing training program jointly developed and adopted by rule by the Oregon State Board of Nursing (851-050-0162) and the State Board of Pharmacy. The training program shall be as follows:¶¶~~

~~(1) Documented review of content regarding safe dispensing listed below:¶¶~~

~~(a) Board of Nursing handbook "Prescriptive Authority in Oregon for Nurse Practitioners and Clinical Nurse Specialists";¶¶~~

~~(b) The Drug Enforcement Administration Pharmacist's Manual (2004);¶¶~~

~~(c) OAR 851, division 56;¶¶~~

~~(d) ORS Chapter 689 and OAR chapter 855;¶¶~~

~~(e) US Consumer Product Safety Commission publication "Poison Prevention Packaging: A Text for Pharmacist's and Physicians";¶¶~~

~~(f) The Institute for Safe Medication Practices (ISMP) "List of Error-Prone Abbreviations, Symbols, and Dose Designations" (Nov. 2006); and¶¶~~

~~(g) Information on available electronic or hard copy prescription drug references which provide information to professionals authorized to dispense prescription medications¶¶~~

~~(2) Successful self examination as provided by the Board of Nursing on these materials.¶¶~~

~~[Publications: Publications referenced are available from the agency.]~~

~~Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 678.390, 689.205~~

~~Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 689.205~~

AMEND: 855-043-0505

NOTICE FILED DATE: 10/25/2021

RULE SUMMARY: Revisions to Division 043 are necessary to incorporate changes to PA scope set forth in 2021 HB 3036, related to dispensing prescription drugs. Repeal of OAR 855-043-0405 through 855-043-0455 and 855-043-0002(7) effective 3/31/2022. Ensure rules reflect updates to statutes, including ORS 678.390 concerning the authority of a nurse practitioner and clinical nurse specialist to dispense drugs. Appropriately references and reflects current regulations, amends and repeals outdated regulations in alignment with the board's 2020-2024 strategic plan.

CHANGES TO RULE:

855-043-0505

Dispensing Practitioner Drug Outlets - Purpose

~~A~~Unless subject to an exemption in OAR 855-043-0510(2), a practitioner's facility that engages in dispensing certain FDA-approved human prescription drug therapies greater than a 72 hours supply or any medication refill must register their dispensing site as a drug outlet with the Bboard as a Dispensing Practitioner Drug Outlet (DPDO).

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 689.205

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 689.155, ORS 689.305

AMEND: 855-043-0510

NOTICE FILED DATE: 10/25/2021

RULE SUMMARY: Revisions to Division 043 are necessary to incorporate changes to PA scope set forth in 2021 HB 3036, related to dispensing prescription drugs. Repeal of OAR 855-043-0405 through 855-043-0455 and 855-043-0002(7) effective 3/31/2022. Ensure rules reflect updates to statutes, including ORS 678.390 concerning the authority of a nurse practitioner and clinical nurse specialist to dispense drugs. Appropriately references and reflects current regulations, amends and repeals outdated regulations in alignment with the board's 2020-2024 strategic plan.

CHANGES TO RULE:

855-043-0510

Dispensing Practitioner Drug Outlets - Registration

- (1) ~~Unless subject to an exemption in OAR 855-043-0510(2), a practitioner's facility that engages in dispensing FDA-approved human prescription drug therapies greater than a 72-hour supply or any medication refill must register their dispensing site as a drug outlet with the Board as a DPDO on a form provided by the Board, and must renew its registration annually on a renewal form provided by the Board.~~
- (2) A practitioner's facility is exempt from this registration requirement if the practitioner and facility only engages in:
  - (A) Dispensing FDA approved drug samples; or
  - (B) Dispensing Medication Assistance Program (MAP) drugs; or
  - (C) Dispensing homeopathic products; or
  - (D) Dispensing natural thyroid supplemental products; or
  - (E) Dispensing a small amount of drugs to start therapy or incidental to a procedure or office visit, up to a 72-hour supply; or
  - (F) An amount greater than a 72-hour supply if the drug is:
    - (i) A drug in the manufacturer's original unit-of-use packaging, such as a metered-dose-inhaler or bottle of fluoride rinse; or
    - (ii) A full course of therapy, if in the professional judgment of the practitioner would be in the patient's best interest, such as a course of antibiotic therapy.
- (3) The initial and renewal applications must state the location of the DPDO and the name of the person applying for registration. When the person applying for registration is not the owner of the dispensing site, the application must disclose the name and address of the owner and the applicant's affiliation with the owner.
  - (a) If more than one individual owns the dispensing site, the names and addresses of the partners or persons holding the three largest ownership interests in the dispensing site must be disclosed on the application.
  - (b) If the owner is a corporation, the application must state the name of the corporation as filed with the Corporation Division of the Oregon Secretary of State, including the names of the corporation's officers.
- (4) Upon request by the Board, the applicant must furnish such information as required by the Board regarding the partners, stockholders, or other persons not named in the application.
- (5) An initial and renewal applications must be accompanied by the fee established in ~~division 110 of this chapter.~~ OAR 855-110.
- (6) A certificate of registration will be issued upon Board approval of the application.
- (7) ~~All registration renewal applications must be accompanied by the annual renewal fee established in Division 110 of this chapter and must contain the information required in sections (2) and (3) of this rule.~~
- (8) The DPDO registration expires March 31, annually. If the annual renewal fee is not paid by ~~February 28~~ March 31 of the current year, the applicant for renewal must submit the ~~delinquent~~ late renewal fee established in ~~division 110 of this chapter~~ OAR 855-110 with the renewal application.
- (9) The registration is not transferable and the registration fee cannot be prorated.
- (10) ~~The registrant must notify the Board, within 15 days, of 15 days prior to any substantial change to the information provided on the registration application. Substantial change shall include but is not limited to: change of ownership; change of business name; change of business address; change of normal business hours; any disciplinary action taken or pending by any state or federal authority against the registrant, or any of its principals, owners, directors, or officers, or supervising practitioner.~~
- (11) A new registration form is required for a change of ownership or location and must be submitted to the Board with the fees as specified in ~~division 110 of this chapter~~ within 15 days of OAR 855-110 15 days prior to the change.
- (12) The Board may grant a time-limited waiver exempting DPDO registration when a practitioner licensing board submits a request to the Board with a plan to annually inspect the dispensing facility to the standards of



the Board.

(12) All Supervising Physician Dispensing Outlet registrations expire on March 31, 2022. Outlets that utilize dispensing Physician Assistants must apply for and be granted registration as a Dispensing Practitioner Drug Outlet upon the expiration of the Supervising Physician Dispensing Outlet Registration unless subject to an exemption in OAR 855-043-0510(2).

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 689.205

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 475.125, ORS 689.155, ORS 689.305

AMEND: 855-043-0530

NOTICE FILED DATE: 10/25/2021

RULE SUMMARY: Revisions to Division 043 are necessary to incorporate changes to PA scope set forth in 2021 HB 3036, related to dispensing prescription drugs. Repeal of OAR 855-043-0405 through 855-043-0455 and 855-043-0002(7) effective 3/31/2022. Ensure rules reflect updates to statutes, including ORS 678.390 concerning the authority of a nurse practitioner and clinical nurse specialist to dispense drugs. Appropriately references and reflects current regulations, amends and repeals outdated regulations in alignment with the board's 2020-2024 strategic plan.

CHANGES TO RULE:

855-043-0530

Dispensing Practitioner Drug Outlets - Drug Acquisition Procurement

The registered DPDO ~~must verify that all drugs are acquired from a registrant of the Board~~ day only receive drugs from an Oregon Registered Drug Outlet (e.g. Wholesaler, Manufacturer or Pharmacy).

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 689.205

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 689.155, ORS 689.305

AMEND: 855-043-0540

NOTICE FILED DATE: 10/25/2021

RULE SUMMARY: Revisions to Division 043 are necessary to incorporate changes to PA scope set forth in 2021 HB 3036, related to dispensing prescription drugs. Repeal of OAR 855-043-0405 through 855-043-0455 and 855-043-0002(7) effective 3/31/2022. Ensure rules reflect updates to statutes, including ORS 678.390 concerning the authority of a nurse practitioner and clinical nurse specialist to dispense drugs. Appropriately references and reflects current regulations, amends and repeals outdated regulations in alignment with the board's 2020-2024 strategic plan.

CHANGES TO RULE:

855-043-0540

Dispensing Practitioner Drug Outlet - Labeling

(1) A prescription must be labeled with the following information:¶¶

(a) Name of patient; ¶¶

(b) Name of prescriber; ¶¶

(c) Name, address, and phone number of the clinic; ¶¶

(d) Date of dispensing; ¶¶

(e) Name and strength of the drug. If the drug does not have a brand name, then the generic name of the drug and the drug manufacturer must be stated; ¶¶

(f) Quantity dispensed; ¶¶

(g) Directions for use; ¶¶

(h) Cautionary statements, if any, as required by law; and ¶¶

(i) ~~Manufacturer's expiration date after which the patient should not use the drug or medicine. Expiration date, or an earlier date if preferable, after prescriptions must be the same as that on the original container or one year from the date the drug was originally dispensed and placed in the new container, which the patient should not use the drug; and ever date is earlier. Any drug expiring before the expected length of time for course of therapy must not be dispensed.~~ ¶¶

(j) Any dispensed prescription medication, other than those in unit dose or unit of use packaging, ~~shall~~ must be labeled with its physical description, including any identification code that may appear on tablets and capsules. ¶¶

(2) Notwithstanding any other requirements in this rule, when a drug is dispensed in the practice of an Expedited Partner Therapy treatment protocol, as described in OAR 855-041-4000 through 40053-0004, the name of the patient may be omitted.

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 689.205

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 689.155, ORS 689.305

AMEND: 855-043-0545

NOTICE FILED DATE: 10/25/2021

RULE SUMMARY: Revisions to Division 043 are necessary to incorporate changes to PA scope set forth in 2021 HB 3036, related to dispensing prescription drugs. Repeal of OAR 855-043-0405 through 855-043-0455 and 855-043-0002(7) effective 3/31/2022. Ensure rules reflect updates to statutes, including ORS 678.390 concerning the authority of a nurse practitioner and clinical nurse specialist to dispense drugs. Appropriately references and reflects current regulations, amends and repeals outdated regulations in alignment with the board's 2020-2024 strategic plan.

CHANGES TO RULE:

855-043-0545

Dispensing Practitioner Drug Outlets - Dispensing and Drug Delivery

~~(1) Drugs dispensed from DPDO Prescription drugs must be personally dispensed by the practitioner unless otherwise authorized by the practitioner's licensing board.~~

~~(2) Drugs dispensed from the DPDO must be dispensed in compliance with the requirements of the practitioner's licensing board.~~

~~(3) A DPDO must comply with all requirements of State or federal law.~~

~~(34) A DPDO must dispense a drug in a new container that complies with the current provisions of the Federal Consumer Packaging Act (Public Law 91-601, 91st Congress, S. 2162) and rules or regulations and with the current United States Pharmacopoeia/National Formulary monographs for preservation, packaging, storage and labeling. Poison Prevention Packaging Act in 16 CFR 1700 (04/01/2021), 16 CFR 1701 (04/01/2021) and 16 CFR 1702 (04/01/2021).~~

~~(5) Dispensed drugs must be packaged by the DPDO, a pharmacy, or a manufacturer registered with the board.~~

~~(6) A DPDO may not accept the return of drugs from a previously dispensed prescription and must maintain a list of sites in Oregon where drugs may be disposed.~~

~~(7) A DPDO may deliver or mail prescription to the patient if:~~

~~(a) Proper drug storage conditions are maintained; and~~

~~(4b) Drugs must be packaged by the practitioner, a pharmacy, or a manufacturer registered with the Board. The DPDO offers in writing, to provide direct counseling, information on how to contact the practitioner, and information about the drug, including, but not limited to:~~

~~(A) Drug name, class and indications;~~

~~(B) Proper use and storage;~~

~~(C) Common side effects;~~

~~(D) Precautions and contraindications; and~~

~~(E) Significant drug interactions.~~

~~(58) A DPDO may not accept the return of drugs from a previously dispensed prescription and shall maintain a list of sites in Oregon where drugs may be dispensed and shall ensure that all prescriptions, prescription refills, and drug orders are correctly dispensed in accordance with the prescribing practitioner's authorization and any other requirement of State or federal law.~~

~~(9) Each authorized dispenser of a prescription drug product for which a Medication Guide is required must provide the Medication Guide directly to each patient or patient's agent when the product is dispensed, unless an exemption applies.~~

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 689.205

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 689.155, ORS 689.305

AMEND: 855-043-0555

NOTICE FILED DATE: 10/25/2021

RULE SUMMARY: Revisions to Division 043 are necessary to incorporate changes to PA scope set forth in 2021 HB 3036, related to dispensing prescription drugs. Repeal of OAR 855-043-0405 through 855-043-0455 and 855-043-0002(7) effective 3/31/2022. Ensure rules reflect updates to statutes, including ORS 678.390 concerning the authority of a nurse practitioner and clinical nurse specialist to dispense drugs. Appropriately references and reflects current regulations, amends and repeals outdated regulations in alignment with the board's 2020-2024 strategic plan.

CHANGES TO RULE:

855-043-0555

Dispensing Practitioner Drug Outlets - Record ~~Keepings~~

(1) A unique dispensing record ~~shall~~must be maintained, be readily retrievable, and kept for a minimum of three years. The record must show, at a minimum, the following:¶

(a) Name of patient;¶

(b) Dose, dosage form, quantity dispensed and either the brand name of drug, or generic name and name of manufacturer or distributor;¶

(c) Directions for use;¶

(d) Date of dispensing; and¶

(e) Initials of person dispensing the prescription.¶

(2) All records of receipt and disposal of drugs must be kept for a minimum of three years.¶

(3) All records ~~required by these rules or by other State and federal law must~~and documents required by ORS 475, ORS 689, and OAR 855:¶

(a) Must be stored on-site for 12 months and must be provided to the board immediately upon request at the time of inspection; ¶

(b) May be readily retrievable and available for inspection by the Board stored in a secured off-site location after 12 months of on-site storage and must be provided to the board upon request within three business days; and ¶

(c) May be in written or electronic format.

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 689.205

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 689.155, ORS 689.305

AMEND: 855-043-0560

NOTICE FILED DATE: 10/25/2021

RULE SUMMARY: Revisions to Division 043 are necessary to incorporate changes to PA scope set forth in 2021 HB 3036, related to dispensing prescription drugs. Repeal of OAR 855-043-0405 through 855-043-0455 and 855-043-0002(7) effective 3/31/2022. Ensure rules reflect updates to statutes, including ORS 678.390 concerning the authority of a nurse practitioner and clinical nurse specialist to dispense drugs. Appropriately references and reflects current regulations, amends and repeals outdated regulations in alignment with the board's 2020-2024 strategic plan.

CHANGES TO RULE:

855-043-0560

Dispensing Practitioner Drug Outlets - Inspections

- (1) The DPDO must complete the ~~B~~board Self Inspection Form by February 1, annually.¶
- (2) Each DPDO will be inspected ~~per OAR 855-001-0040~~ on a routine basis and ~~shall~~must be scheduled in advance with the ~~practitioner~~DPDO, to occur during normal business hours.¶
- (3) The inspection ~~shall~~must focus on the acquisition, storage, labeling and recordkeeping of drugs intended for dispensing and any violation will apply to the DPDO registration and not to the practitioner.¶
- (4) The Board of Pharmacy ~~shall~~must notify the practitioner's licensing ~~B~~board of any disciplinary action taken against a DPDO.

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 689.205

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 689.155, ORS 689.305

AMEND: 855-043-0705

NOTICE FILED DATE: 10/25/2021

RULE SUMMARY: Appropriately references and reflects current regulations, amends and repeals outdated regulations in alignment with the board's 2020-2024 strategic plan.

CHANGES TO RULE:

855-043-0705

Community Health Clinic (CHC) - Registration ¶

- (1) A Community Health Clinic Drug Outlet must register with the ~~B~~board on a form prescribed by the ~~B~~board, and must renew its registration annually on a renewal form prescribed by the ~~B~~board.¶
- (2) An initial application and renewal application must be accompanied by the fee established in ~~division 110 of this Chapter~~OAR 855-110.¶
- (3) A certificate of registration will be issued upon ~~B~~board approval of the application.¶
- (4) The CHC Drug Outlet registration expires March 31, annually. If the annual renewal fee is not paid by ~~February 28~~March 31 of the current year, the applicant for renewal must submit the ~~delinquent~~late renewal fee established in ~~division 110 of this Chapter~~OAR 855-110 with the renewal application.¶
- (5) The registration is not transferable and the registration fee cannot be prorated.¶
- (6) The registrant must notify the ~~B~~board, within 15 days, of any substantial change to the information provided on the registration application. A substantial change shall include but not be limited to: a change of ownership; change of business address; change of normal business hours; any disciplinary action taken or pending by any state or federal authority against the registrant, or any of its principals, owners, directors, officers, or Medical Director.¶
- (7) A new registration form is required for a change of ownership or location and must be submitted to the ~~B~~board with the fees as specified in ~~division 110 of this Chapter~~OAR 855-110 within 15 days of the change.¶
- (8) A CHC Drug Outlet may be inspected by the ~~B~~board.

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 689.205

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 689.305

AMEND: 855-043-0740

NOTICE FILED DATE: 10/25/2021

RULE SUMMARY: Appropriately references and reflects current regulations, amends and repeals outdated regulations in alignment with the board's 2020-2024 strategic plan.

CHANGES TO RULE:

855-043-0740

Community Health Clinic (CHC) - Dispensing and Drug Delivery ¶¶

- (1) A drug may only be dispensed by a practitioner who has been given dispensing privileges by their licensing Board or by a Registered Nurse.¶¶
- (2) A Registered Nurse may only provide over-the-counter drugs pursuant to established CHC protocols.¶¶
- (3) A Registered Nurse may only dispense a drug listed in, or for a condition listed in, the formulary.¶¶
- (4) Nonjudgmental dispensing functions may be delegated to staff assistants when the accuracy and completeness of the prescription is verified by a practitioner who has been given dispensing privileges by their licensing Board, or by a Registered Nurse, prior to being delivered or transferred to the patient.¶¶
- (5) The CHC will provide appropriate drug information for medications dispensed to a patient, which can be provided by the Registered Nurse or practitioner at the time of dispensing.¶¶
- (6) ~~All drugs CHC must be dispensed~~ a drug in a new container that complies with the current provisions of the Federal Consumer Packaging Act (Public Law 91-601, 91st Congress, S. 2162) and rules or regulations and with the current United States Pharmacopoeia/National Formulary monographs for preservation, packaging, storage and labeling.¶¶
- ~~(7) Poison Prevention Packaging Act in 16 CFR 1700 (04/01/2021), 16 CFR 1701 (04/01/2021) and 16 CFR 1702 (04/01/2021).~~¶¶
- ~~(7) Dispensed~~ drugs must be repackaged by the practitioner, Registered Nurse, a pharmacy; or a manufacturer registered with the ~~B~~board.¶¶
- (8) A CHC may not accept the return of drugs from a previously dispensed prescription and must maintain a list of sites in Oregon where drugs may be disposed.¶¶
- (9) A CHC must have access to the most current issue of at least one pharmaceutical reference with current, properly filed supplements and updates appropriate to and based on the standards of practice for the setting.¶¶
- (10) A CHC may deliver or mail prescription to the patient if:¶¶
  - (a) Proper drug storage conditions are maintained; and¶¶
  - (b) The CHC offers in writing, to provide direct counseling, information on how to contact the practitioner, and information about the drug, including, but not limited to:¶¶
    - (A) Drug name, class and indications;¶¶
    - (B) Proper use and storage;¶¶
    - (C) Common side effects;¶¶
    - (D) Precautions and contraindications; and¶¶
    - (E) Significant drug interactions.¶¶
- (11) The CHC must ensure that all prescriptions, prescription refills, and drug orders are correctly dispensed in accordance with the prescribing practitioner's authorization and any other requirement of State or federal law.¶¶
- (12) Each authorized dispenser of a prescription drug product for which a Medication Guide is required must provide the Medication Guide directly to each patient or patient's agent when the product is dispensed, unless an exemption applies.

Statutory/Other Authority: ORS 689.205

Statutes/Other Implemented: ORS 689.305